AGENDA

Erie County Council

View More at
www.eriecountypa.gov

Public is invited to attend.

ERIE COUNTY, PA

Terry M. Scutella, Chairman
Chris Drexel, Vice Chairman
Charlie Bayle

Rock Copeland

André R. Horton

Ellen Schauerman

Jim Winarski

Erie County Courthouse
140 West 6th Street, Room 117
Erie, PA 16501

5:00 P.M. — Council Caucus
6:00 P.M. — Council Meeting
View Live: https://www.youtube.com/c/eriecountypa

REGULAR MEETING

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

OPTIONAL PRAYER OR REFLECTION

ROLL CALL

HEARING OF THE PUBLIC
A. John May

B. Mary Rennie

C. Mary Lee

D. Kirista Perry Lamb

E. Anna McCartney

F.  Others

MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

July 16, 2024 - Regular Meeting

REPORTS OF COUNTY OFFICIALS

A.  County Executive and/or his Designee

B. Finance Committee - Mr. Copeland

C. Personnel Committee - Mr. Winarski

D. Other

Tuesday, August 20, 2024

Page 1 of 21


https://www.youtube.com/c/eriecountypa

August 20,2024 - Page |2

OLD BUSINESS

A.

Second Reading of Ordinance Number 48, 2024, "Fifth 2024 Public Health Fund
Budget Supplemental Appropriation of $70,000 for Reimbursement from Maternal
Child Health Program" (First Read 7/16/24)(Finance Committee)

Second Reading of Ordinance Number 49, 2024, "Amending Ordinance 76, 2010 'Erie
County Land & Subdivision Ordinance (SALDO)" (First Read 7/16/24)
(Finance Committee)

Second Reading of Ordinance Number 50, 2024, "2024 Appointed Official's Salary
Ordinance Full-Time Assistant Public Defender" (First Read 7/16/24)
(Personnel Committee)

Tabled Item: Ordinance Number 13, 2024, "2024 Appointed Official's Salary Ordinance
- Director of Administration" (First Read 2/13/24)(Tabled 2/27/24)
(Personnel Committee)

NEW BUSINESS

A.

First Reading of Ordinance Number 51, 2024, "Ninth 2024 Library Fund Budget
Supplemental Appropriation of $21,197 for Donations from the Friends of the
Library"(Finance Committee)

First Reading of Ordinance Number 52, 2024, "2024 Library Fund Budget Revised
Revenue and Expenditures of $278,420 for Reorganization of Library Staff"
(Finance Committee)

First Reading of Ordinance Number 53, 2024, "2024 General Fund Budget Revised
Revenue and Expenditures of $278,420 for Reorganization of Library Staff"
(Finance Committee)

First Reading of Ordinance Number 54, 2024, "Revised Expenditures of $ for
Creation of New Line Item, Election Facilities and Equipment Manager
Position"(Finance Committee)

First Reading of Ordinance Number 55, 2024, "2024 Appointed Official's Salary
Ordinance Part-Time Assistant Public Defender"(Personnel Committee)

Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 22, 2024, "Approving the County Council
Response to the 2025-2027 Erie County Operational & Capital Plan"
(Finance Committee)

Page 2 of 21



August 20,2024 - Page |3

Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 23, 2024, "In Support of a Forensic Audit of
the County of Erie to Provide a Greater Degree of Transparency into the
Administration’s Finances and a Report Disseminating the Findings of the
Audit"(Finance Committee)

Possible reappointment of T.J. Sandell to the NWPA Job Connect Board - Workforce
Development Board. Term to expire June 30, 2028. (County Executive)

9.  ADJOURNMENT

A.

*The next Finance/Personnel Committee Meetings are Thursday, August 29, 2024, at
4pm in room 114A, Erie County Courthouse or via Zoom.

*The next Regular Meeting of County Council is Tuesday, September 3, 2024, at 6pm
in room 117, Erie County Courthouse or streamed live at the link provided on the
County website.

*Members of the public wishing to speak at an upcoming Regular Meeting of Council
or those requiring specific accommodation are encouraged to call or email the Council
Office at (814) 451-6303 or councilrequests@eriecountypa.gov, no later than the end of
business 5 days prior to the meeting. The public must be present at the meeting to
speak.

Page 3 of 21



MINUTES Terry M. Scutella, Chairman
S Chris Drexel, Vice Chairman

Charlie Bayle

Rock Copeland

André R. Horton

Ellen Schauerman

Jim Winarski

Erie County Council

View More At
www.eriecountypa.gov

Erie County Courthouse
140 West 6th Street, Room 117
Erie, PA 16501

ERIE COUNTY, PA

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Tuesday, July 16, 2024

PLEDGE OF Chairman Scutella called to order a Regular Meeting of the Erie County Council
ALLEGIANCE at 06:00PM and led the Pledge and Allegiance.
OPTIONAL PRAYER Mrs. Schauerman provided an inspirational quote.
OR REFLECTION
ROLL CALL Members Present: Chairman Scutella; Vice Chairman Drexel; Mr. Bayle;
Mr. Copeland; Mr. Horton; Mrs. Schauerman via phone;
Mr. Winarski.
Staff Present: Clerk Karen Chillcott; Deputy Clerk Megan Moore;
Solicitor Thomas Talarico; Financial Advisor Kenny
Bonus.
HEARING OF THE
PUBLIC
Mary Lee Mary Lee did not speak.
Others:

James Johnson, City of Erie — Mr. Johnson addressed the Council on parking
issues, quality of life, and safety due to the Bayfront Lounge bar patrons near his
home. He had video proof of the illegal and disruptive activity. Mr. Johnson
expressed worry about violence that would impact the community.

Robert Mickens, City of Erie - Mr. Mickens informed the Council of a continued
public nuisance, crime, and disruption to the quality of life in the community. He
relayed he found no recourse despite calling the police 25 times and speaking to
the bar owner (Bayfront Lounge), who denied responsibility. Mr. Mickens
explained he witnessed gambling and drug use by patrons. He noted contact with
the Liquor Board and expressed frustration about the ongoing issues caused by
the bar's activities.

Deonte Cooley - City of Erie: Mr. Cooley addressed Council Member Horton's
social media post on funding for the BIPOC community, and emphasized his
support for BIPOC funding and the DEIC. He shared personal experiences as a
BIPOC member and highlighted the critical need for funding for organizations,
business owners, and the homeless population. He inquired why, if funding had
been allocated and decisions made, the funds had not yet been distributed.

Dr. Rhonda Matthews, City of Erie and COO of Erie Black Wall Street: Dr.
Matthews highlighted the need for funding for BIPOC communities and
proposed two ideas to the County Council; allocating funds to Erie Black Wall
Street's programs and using the funds to support business development for
economic growth. Dr. Matthews advocated that funds could be released from

Page 4 of 21



MINUTES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETING

June 18, 2024 - Regular
Meeting

REPORTS OF COUNTY
OFFICIALS

County Executive and/or
his Designee

Finance Committee —
Mr. Copeland

Personnel Committee —
Mr. Winarski

Other

OLD BUSINESS

Second Reading of
Ordinance Number 40,
2024, "Ninth 2024 General

Fund Budget Supplemental

Appropriation of $74,879
for Release of Restricted
Automation Fees in the
Prothonotary Office”
(First Read 6/18/24)
(Finance Committee)

Second Reading of
Ordinance Number 41,
2024 “Tenth 2024 General

Fund Budget Supplemental

Appropriation of $92,017
for Release of Restricted
Automation Fees in the
Clerk of Courts Office”
(First Read 6/18/24)
(Finance Committee)

July 16,2024 - Page |2

Diverse Erie to various organizations and benefit extensive economic
development in Erie.

Horton moved to approve the minutes from the June 18, 2024, Regular Meeting.
This was seconded by Copeland and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

Mr. Copeland reported on the items that were moved forward from the Finance
Committee meeting on Thursday, July 11, 2024.

Mr. Winarski reported on the items that were moved forward from the Personnel
Committee meeting on Thursday, July 11, 2024.

Mr. Horton noted that the Council did not respond directly to public comments
but wanted to use the time to address a few issues. He stated his opposition to
interruptions during his personal and public activities, noting that this meeting
was better suited to address public issues. He mentioned the Council's 5-2 vote to
release DEIC funds, approved in January but not supplemented by the County
Executive. Mr. Horton expressed disappointment over the lack of BIPOC
attendance at meetings to address the DEIC grant funding issue. He appreciated
public engagement today and encouraged community members to voice their
concerns publicly about the $1.5 million in available funds by contacting the
County Executive and coming to future meetings to be heard.

Ms. Chillcott gave a Second Reading of Ordinance Number 40, 2024, “Ninth
2024 General Fund Budget Supplemental Appropriation of $74,879 for Release
of Restricted Automation Fees in the Prothonotary Office”.

This was moved by Winarski, seconded by Horton and carried in a 7— 0 vote.
Scutella-Y |Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y |Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott gave a second reading of Ordinance Number 41, 2024 “Tenth 2024
General Fund Budget Supplemental Appropriation of $92,017 for Release of
Restricted Automation Fees in the Clerk of Courts Office”.

This was moved by Bayle, seconded by Winarski and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

Scutella-Y |[Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Page 5 of 21



July 16,2024 - Page |3

Second Reading of Ms. Chillcott gave a second reading of Ordinance Number 42, 2024, “Eleventh
Ordinance Number 42, 2024 General Fund Budget Supplemental Appropriation of $174,859 for Release
2024, “Eleventh 2024 of Restricted Automation Fees in the Register of Wills Office”.

General Fund Budget This was moved by Horton, seconded by Winarski and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.
Supplemental Scutella - Y Drexel - Y

Appropriation of $174,859 |gayje - Y Copeland - Y

for Release of Restricted Horton - Y Schauerman -Y

Automation Fees in the Winarski - Y

Register of Wills Office”

(First Read 6/18/24)

(Finance Committee)

Second Reading of Ms. Chillcott gave a second reading of Ordinance Number 43, 2024, “Twelfth
Ordinance Number 43, 2024 General Fund Budget Supplemental Appropriation of $308,973 for Release
2024, “Twelfth 2024 of Restricted County Record Improvement Funds”.

General Fund Budget This was moved by Bayle, seconded by Horton and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.
Supplemental Scutella - Y Drexel - Y

Appropriation of $308,973 |Bayle - Y Copeland - Y

for Release of Restricted [ .~ Schauerman -Y

County Record . Winarski - Y

Improvement Funds

(First Read 6/18/24)

(Finance Committee)

Tabled Item: Ordinance No Action Taken.
Number 13, 2024, ''2024

Appointed Official's Salary

Ordinance - Director of

Administration" (First

Read 2/13/24) (Tabled

2/27/24) (Personnel

Committee)

NEW BUSINESS

First Reading of Ordinance Ms. Chillcott gave a first reading of Ordinance Number 48, 2024, “Fifth 2024
Number 48, 2024, "Fifth  Public Health Fund Budget Supplemental Appropriation of $70,000 for

2024 Public Health Fund  Reimbursement from Maternal Child Health Program”.

Budget Supplemental

Appropriation of $70,000

for Reimbursement from

Maternal Child Health

Program" (Finance

Committee)

First Reading of Ordinance Ms. Chillcott gave a first reading of Ordinance Number 49, 2024, “Amending
Number 49, 2024, Ordinance 76, 2010 "Erie County Land & Subdivision Ordinance (SALDO)”.
""Amending Ordinance 76,

2010 'Erie County Land &

Subdivision Ordinance

(SALDO)'"" (Finance

Committee)

Page 6 of 21



July 16,2024 - Page |4

First Reading of Ordinance Ms. Chillcott gave a first reading of Ordinance Number 50, 2024, “2024

Number 50, 2024, 2024
Appointed Official's Salary
Ordinance Full-Time
Assistant Public Defender"
(Personnel Committee)

Possible Adoption of
Resolution Number 17,
2024, "'To Exonerate
Delinquent Taxes, Interest
and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie
County Land Bank Erie
County Tax Parcel No.
(33)-092-376.0-070.04"
(Finance Committee)

Possible Adoption of
Resolution Number 18,
2024, "To Exonerate
Delinquent Taxes, Interest
and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie
County Land Bank Erie
County Tax Parcel Nos.
(05)-27-167.0-5, (08)-034-
138.0-010.00, and (08)-037-
127.0-008.00" (Finance
Committee)

Possible Adoption of
Resolution Number 19,
2024, "To Exonerate
Delinquent Taxes, Interest
and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie
County Land Bank Erie
County Tax Parcel No.
(21)-076-004.0-006.00"
(Finance Committee)

Possible Adoption of
Resolution Number 20,
2024, "To Exonerate
Delinquent Taxes, Interest
and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie
County Land Bank Erie
County Tax Parcel Nos.

Appointed Official's Salary Ordinance Full-Time Assistant Public Defender”.

Ms. Chillcott read in the title only Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 17,
2024, “To Exonerate Delinquent Taxes, Interest and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie County Land Bank Erie County Tax Parcel No. (33)-092-
376.0-070.04”.

This was moved by Winarski, seconded by Copeland and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

Scutella-Y [Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott read in title only Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 18,
2024, “To Exonerate Delinquent Taxes, Interest and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie County Land Bank Erie County Tax Parcel Nos. (05)-27-
167.0-5, (08)-034-138.0-010.00, and (08)-037-127.0-008.00”.

This was moved by Winarski, seconded by Copeland and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

Scutella-Y [Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott read in title only Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 19,
2024, “To Exonerate Delinquent Taxes, Interest and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie County Land Bank Erie County Tax Parcel No. (21)-076-
004.0-006.00™.

This was moved by Horton, seconded by Winarski and carried ina 7- 0 vote.

Scutella-Y |[Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott read in title only Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 20,
2024, “To Exonerate Delinquent Taxes, Interest and Penalties on Property
Acquired by the Erie County Land Bank Erie County Tax Parcel Nos. (41)-015-
070.0-008.00, (42)-015-078.0-007.00, (41)-004-008.0-004.02, and (41)-011-
044.0-005.00.

This was moved by Bayle, seconded by Winarski and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.
|Scutella -Y |Drexe1 -Y |

Page 7 of 21



(41)-015-070.0-008.00, (42)-
015-078.0-007.00, (41)-004-
008.0-004.02, and (41)-011-
044.0-005.00" (Finance
Committee)

Possible Adoption of
Resolution Number 21,
2024, "To Exonerate
Outstanding Taxes,
Penalties, Fees, and
Interest on 3549 W 22 ST
TRL, Parcel No. 33-053-
225.0-001.55" (Finance
Committee)

Possible appointment of
Peter J. Zaphiris to the
Erie County Convention
Center Authority. Term
to expire December 31,
2025. (Schauerman)

Possible appointment of
Steven G. Inman, CPA,
CGMA to the Erie County
Hospital Authority. Term
to expire December 31,
2024. (County Executive)

Possible reappointment of
Thomas G. Wilkinson to
the Erie County
Agricultural Land
Preservation Board. Term
to expire December 31,

Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton-Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Mr. Horton asked to address the members of the public quickly before
proceeding to the next item of the agenda.

July 16,2024 - Page |5

Mr. Horton acknowledged the children brought to the County Seat by a youth
leader. He wanted the young men to know that Council members serve them and
encouraged them to feel welcome in the building, despite any differences in
appearance or the other types of services that are conducted at the Courthouse.
He urged the young men to tell their parents to attend County Council meetings
and thanked them for coming. He emphasized the importance of their presence,
noting that it was uncommon for young men to attend and that there had not been
fair representation of people who looked like them on the Council until he
himself was voted into office.

Ms. Chillcott read in the title only Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 21,
2024, "To Exonerate Outstanding Taxes, Penalties, Fees, and Interest on 3549 W

22 ST TRL, Parcel No. 33-053-225.0-001.55".

This was moved by Horton, seconded by Winarski and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

Scutella-Y [Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott announced the possible appointment of Peter J. Zaphiris to the Erie
County Convention Center Authority. Term to expire December 31, 2025.
This was moved by Schauerman, seconded by Winarski and carriedina 7 - 0

vote.

Scutella-Y |[Drexel - Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott announced the possible appointment of Steven G. Inman, CPA,
CGMA to the Erie County Hospital Authority. Term to expire December 31,

This was moved by Horton, seconded by Bayle and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

2024.

Scutella-Y |Drexel-Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y
Horton - Y Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Ms. Chillcott announced the Possible reappointment of Thomas G. Wilkinson to
the Erie County Agricultural Land Preservation Board. Term to expire December

This was moved by Winarski, seconded by Horton and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

31, 2026.
Scutella-Y |Drexel-Y
Bayle - Y Copeland - Y

Page 8 of 21



July 16,2024 - Page |6

2026. (County Executive) |Horton-Y  |Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Possible appointment of Ms. Chillcott announced the Possible appointment of Justin P. Pacansky to the
Justin P. Pacansky to the  Erie County Agricultural Land Preservation Board. Term to expire December 31,
Erie County Agricultural  2026.

Land Preservation Board. This was moved by Schauerman, seconded by Bayle and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.

Term to expire December |[Scutella-Y |Drexel-Y

31, 2026. (County Bayle - Y Copeland - Y

Executive) Horton-Y  |Schauerman -Y
Winarski - Y

Possible appointment of Ms. Chillcott announced the Possible appointment of Keith Szewczyk to the Erie
Keith Szewczyk to the Erie County NWPA Job Connect Board - Workforce Development Board. Term to

County NWPA Job expire June 30, 2028.

Connect Board — This was moved by Bayle, seconded by Horton and carried in a 7 - 0 vote.
Workforce Development Scutella-Y [Drexel-Y

Board. Term to expire Bayle - Y Copeland - Y

s (,)’ 2028. (County Horton - Y  |Schauerman -Y

Executive) Winarski - Y

ADJOURNMENT Horton moved to adjourn at 06:37PM.

County Council Meetings are documented by action minutes. For a detailed
account of the meeting, please view the recording at
https://www.youtube.com/(@eriecountypa

lik

Page 9 of 21


https://www.youtube.com/@eriecountypa

ORDINANCE NUMBER 49, 2024

Amending Ordinance 76, 2010 “Erie County Land & Subdivision Ordinance
(SALDO)”

An ordinance of the County of Erie to amend certain provisions of the County
of Erie Ordinance 76 of 2010, also known as the Erie County Subdivision and
Land Development Ordinance.

Whereas, the County of Erie first adopted the Erie County Subdivision and
Land Development Regulations on November 10, 1965 and has administered
such regulations since January 3, 1966; and

Whereas, such regulations were last updated on May 28, 2019 in accordance
with the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, Act 247 of 1968, as
amended, and in response to the changing needs of Erie County; and

Whereas, it is the duty and function of the Erie County Planning Commission
to prepare and recommend subdivision and land development regulations in
Erie County, Pennsylvania; and

Whereas, the Erie County Planning Commission determined that development
and adoption of Ordinance Amendments are necessary to promote the use of
solar energy and to provide for the land planning, installation, construction
and decommissioning of solar energy facilities, subject to reasonable
conditions that will protect public health, safety and welfare; and

Whereas, on April 13, 2023, the Erie County Planning Commission
recommended adoption of Ordinance Amendments; and

Whereas, the Erie County Department of Planning and Community
Development recommends adoption of the Ordinance Amendments; and

Whereas, a 30-day review and comment period was held in accordance with
Act 247 of 1968, as amended, and no adverse public comments were received;
and

Whereas, pursuant to public notice, Erie County Council held a public hearing
regarding the Ordinance Amendments on July 16, 2024; and

Whereas, Erie County Council, after consideration of comments received (or
lack therecof, as the case may be)}, has determined that the Ordinance
Amendments should not be substantially revised in whole or in part.

BE IT ENACTED by the County Council of the County of Erie pursuant to
Article 1, Section 3B1 and 3B2 (f) of the Home Rule Charter and in
accordance with the provisions of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning
Code, Act 247 of 1968, as amended, that County of Erie Ordinance 76, 2010,
also known as the Erie County Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance, is hereby amended, as follows:

Page 10 of 21



ORDINANCE NUMBER %7 , 2024

Section 102, Purpose is hereby amended to add the following purpose.

To promote the use of solar energy and to provide for the land planning, installation,
construction and decommissioning of solar energy facilities, subject to reasonable
conditions that will protect public health, safety and welfare.

Section 602.1 — Waiver Eligibility Criteria is hereby amended to add the following:

Land development plan submittal shall not be waived for a new solar energy facility,
unless specifically exempted from this ordinance. See Section 612.2

Renumbering of Ordinance Sections — In order to provide for the insertion of solar
energy facilities regulations as Section 612, the following sections shall be renumbered.

Section 612 Acceptance and Maintenance of Improvements shall be renumbered as
Section 613.

Section 612.1 Acceptance of Improvements shall be renumbered as Section 613.1.
Section 612.2 Maintenance of Improvements shall be renumbered as Section 613.2.

Article 6, Land Development Standards, shall be amended to add Section 612, Solar
Energy Facilities, to provide as follows:

Section 612 — Solar Energy Facilities

Solar energy facilities (S8EF) shall be considered a land development. Site plans shall be
submitted as a land development and shall comply with the requirements of this section as well
as all other applicable provisions of this ordinance.

612.1 — Applicability

A. This section applies to all land development plans which provide for freestanding
or ground-mounted solar energy facilities to be constructed or installed after August
20, 2024, unless specifically exempted from this ordinance.

B. No land development plan providing for the construction or instaltation of a
freestanding or ground-mounted solar energy facility shall be approved unless
such plan has complied with the requirements of this ordinance.

C. Any physical modification or alteration to an existing and permitted freestanding or
ground-mounted solar energy facility that materially alters the size, type or
components shall require land development approval under this ordinance. Like-
kind replacements shall not require a new land development approval.

Page 11 of 21



ORDINANCE NUMBER 4% , 2024

612.2 — Exemptions

A. Solar energy facilities with a solar project area of less than one (1) acre are exempt
from this ordinance. \

B. Solar energy facilities constructed prior to August 20, 2024 shall not be required to
meet the requirements of this ordinance; provided that any physical modification
or alteration to an existing freestanding or ground-mounted SEF that materially

alters the size, type or components of the SEF shall comply with the provisions of

this ordinance. Routine maintenance or like-kind replacements shall not require a
new land development approval.

612.3 — Definitions Specific to Solar Energy Facilities
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this ordinance, unless the context
indicates otherwise, shall have the foliowing meanings ascribed to them:

Accessory Solar Energy Facility (ASEF): A solar energy facility used to capture solar
energy, convert it to electrical energy or thermal power and supply electrical or thermal
power primarily for on-site use. An accessory solar energy facility is intended to primarily
reduce on-site consumption of utility power or fuels.

Facility Owner: The individual, group, entity or entities having an equity interest in the
solar energy facility, including their respective successors and assigns.

Ground-Mounted Solar Energy Facility: A solar energy facility that includes a solar energy
system that is anchored to the ground via a pole or other mounting system, detached from
any other structure.

Non-Participating Landowner: Any landowner except those on whose property all or a*

portion of a solar energy facility is located pursuant to an agreement with the facility owner
or operator.

Principal Solar Energy Facility (PSEF): A solar energy facility principally used to capture
solar energy, convert it to electrical energy or thermal power and supply electrical or
thermal power primarily for off-site use.

Solar Energy Facility (SEF): An area of land used for a solar energy system used to
capture solar energy, convert it to electrical energy or thermal power and supply electrical
or thermal power for either on-site or off-site use. Solar energy facilities consist of one (1)
or more free-standing, ground-mounted, or roof or wall mounted solar collector devices,
solar related equipment and other accessory structures and buildings including light
reflectors, concentrators, and heat exchangers, substations, electrical infrastructure,
transmission lines and other appurtenant structures.

Solar Energy System: A solar photovoltaic cell, module/panels, or array, or solar hot air
or water collector device, which relies upon solar radiation as an energy source for

Page 12 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

collection, inversion, storage, and distribution of solar energy for electricity generation or
transfer of stored heat.

1. Solar Array: A grouping of multiple solar modules or panels with the purpose of
harvesting solar energy.

2. Solar Cell: The smallest basic solar electric device which generates electricity
when exposed to light.

3. Solar Module: A grouping of solar cells with the purpose of harvesting solar
energy.

4. Solar Panel: That part or portion of a solar energy system containing one or
more receptive celis or modules, the purpose of which is to convert solar energy
for use in space heating or cooling, for water heating and cooling, and/or for
electricity.

Solar Project Area: The total area of land including the solar energy system, the space
between solar arrays, stormwater management area, access drives, solar related
equipment, fencing and internal access roads. The solar project area does not include
any area set aside exclusively for agricultural uses and designed to be adequate for the
maneuverability of typical farm equipment.

Solar Related Equipment: ltems including a solar photovoltaic cell, module, panel, or
array, or solar hot air or water collector device panels, lines, pumps, batteries, mounting
brackets, framing and possibly foundations or other structures used for or intended to be
used for collection of solar energy.

612.4 — Additional Plan Requirements

The land development plan, in addition to the other requirements of this ordinance shall
contain the following:

A. A narrative describing the proposed solar energy facility, including an overview of
the project; the project location; the approximate generating capacity of the SEF;
the approximate number, representative types and height or range of heights of
the panels or other solar related equipment to be constructed or installed, including
their generating capacity, dimensions and respective manufacturers, and a
description of ancillary facilities.

B. An affidavit or similar evidence of agreement between the landowner(s) of the real
property on which the solar energy facility is to be located and the facility owner,
demonstrating that the facility owner has the permission of the landowner(s) to
apply for necessary permits or approvals for construction and operation of the solar
energy system.

C. Identification of the property, properties or portions thereof on which the proposed
SEF will be located, and the properties adjacent to where the SEF will be located.

Page 13 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

D. A site plan showing the pianned location of solar related equipment, property lines,
setback lines, access road and turnout locations, substation(s), electrical cabling
from the solar energy system to the substation(s), ancillary equipment, buildings,
and structures, including associated distribution and/or transmission lines, and
layout of all structures within the geographical boundaries of any applicable
setback.

E. The facility owner shall provide written confirmation that the public utility company
to which the SEF will be connected has been informed of the facility owner’s intent
to install a grid connected system, and has approved such connection.

F. The facility owner shall provide the name and phone number of a person
responsible for the public to contact with inquiries and complaints related to the
SEF. The facility owner shall make reasonable efforts to respond to the public’s
inquiries and complaints,

G. An affidavit by the facility owner acknowledging that approval of the land
development plan shall not and does not create in the property owner(s), its, his,
her or their successors and assigns in title or, create in the property itself : (a) the
right to remain free of shadows and/or obstructions to solar energy caused by
development of adjoining or other property or the growth of any trees or vegetation
on such property; or (b) the right to prohibit the development on or growth of any
trees or vegetation on such property.

H. Documents related to decommissioning, including a decommissioning agreement
with the local municipality or the County, a schedule for the decommissioning, and
financing security.

I. Other relevant studies, reports, certifications and approvals as may be reasonably
requested by the County to ensure compliance with this ordinance.

612.5 — Design and Installation

A. The layout, design and installation of the solar energy facility shall conform to
applicable industry standards, such as those of the American National Standards
Institute (ANSI), Underwriters Laboratories (UL}, the American Society for Testing
and Materials (ASTM), ), Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE),
Solar Rating and Certification Corporation (SRCC), Electrical Testing Laboratory
(ETL), Florida Solar Energy Center (FSEC) or other similar certifying
organizations, and shall comply with the PA Uniform Construction Code and with
all other applicable fire and life safety requirements. The manufacturer
specifications for the key components of the facility shall be submitted as part of
the application.

B. The SEF shall comply with all applicable municipal crdinances, including but not
limited to, municipal zoning ordinances, solar ordinances, and stormwater
management ordinances.

Page 14 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

C. All on-site utility, transmission and plumbing lines shall be placed underground to
the extent feasible.

D. Solar energy systems shall not be placed within any legal easement or right-of-way
location, or be placed within any storm water conveyance system or in any other
manner that would alter or impede storm water runoff from collecting in a
constructed storm water conveyance system.

612.6 — Stormwater Management

A. The applicant shall provide written confirmation from the local municipality that the
SEF complies with the municipal stormwater management ordinance. If a
stormwater management plan is required, a copy of the approved plan shall be
submitted with the application.

B. Facility owners are encouraged to use low maintenance and low growing
vegetative surfaces under the system as a best management practice for storm
water management.

C. Unless specified otherwise by an applicable municipal ordinance, the area beneath
the ground mounted solar arrays shall be considered pervious cover. However,
use of impervious construction materials under the system may cause the area to
be considered impervious and subject to stormwater management requirements
and the impervious surfaces limitations within the underlying municipal zoning
district.

612.7 — Setbhack Requirements

A. Property setback lines shall be as specified by the local municipality’s zoning
ordinance, solar ordinance, or other applicable municipal ordinance.

1. Principal solar energy facilities (PSEF) shall comply with the setback
requirements for principal structures within the underlying zoning district,
unless specified otherwise by a municipal ordinance.

2. Accessory solar energy facilities (ASEF) shall comply with the setback
requirements for accessory structures within the underlying zoning district,
unless specified otherwise by a municipal ordinance.

B. Where no local municipal zoning ordinance, sclar ordinance, or other applicable
ordinance is in effect, the following standards shall apply.

1. Front setback lines shall not be less than fifty (50) feet.
2. Side setback lines shall not be less than forty (40) feet.
3. Rear setback lines shall not be less than forty (40) feet.
4

. Required fences shall not be located within the required minimum setback
areas.

5. If the solar energy facility occupies two or more contiguous properties,
setbacks between the contiguous properties shall be waived along the

Page 15 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

shared property boundaries so that the facility may be installed continuously
and make the most efficient use of the project area.

6. Batteries and other electricity storage equipment shall be located a
minimum of one hundred and fifty (150) feet from the property line of a non-
participating landowner’s property.

612.8 — Buffer and Screening Requirements

Freestanding or ground mounted solar energy facilities shall be buffered and screened
from adjacent residential zoning districts, residential uses on surrounding properties,
platted residential lots, and public roads in accordance with the following requirements:

A. Vegetative buffering shall be installed to screen and buffer adjacent residential
zoning districts, residential uses on surrounding properties, platted residential lots,
and public roads from the SEF. The County Planning Commission may waive or
modify this requirement in areas where it determines that the retention of existing
trees within the vegetative buffering area may constitute the required vegetative
buffer or where the Commission determines that the solar panels cannot be viewed
from adjacent residential zoning districts, residential uses on surrounding
properties, platted residential lots, and public roads.

B. The vegetative buffering shall be installed along the exterior side of the fencing. All
required vegetative buffering shall be located within fifty (50) feet of the required
fencing.

C. Vegetative buffering should be designed to emulate the mix of native species and
appearance of existing tree lines, hedge rows, and wooded areas already in
existence within the landscape where the SEF is proposed. The Applicant shall
access the species mix and characteristics found in existing tree lines, hedge rows,
and wooded areas surrounding the SEF and document that the vegetative
buffering is designed to emulate these characteristics.

D. Vegetative buffering shall be selected to provide year-round buffering and shall be
of sufficient height, density, and maturity to screen the facility from ground level
visibility, as set forth herein within thirty-six (36) months of the installation of the
GEE.

E. A combination of natural topography and vegetation may serve as a buffer,
provided that the SEF will not be visible from adjacent residential zoning districts,
residential uses on surrounding properties, platted residential lots, and public
roads. Earthen berms may not be created to serve as a buffer.

F. The buffering requirements of this section shall supersede the provisions of
Section 607.4 (A) Types of Screening, and Section 607.4 (B) General Design
Standards of this Ordinance as they may pertain to SEF.

G. The requirements of Section 607.4 (C) Planting Requirements, Section 607.4 (D)
Landscaping and Buffer Yard Maintenance, and Section 607.4 (E) Relief from
Buffer Requirements of this Ordinance shall apply, as applicable.

Page 16 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

612.9 — Access

A. Stabilized access drives, with a dust-free surface, shall be installed from a state or
local road in order to allow maintenance and emergency management vehicles to
access the SEF site. The minimum cartway width shall be fourteen (14) feet. The
SEF developer shall obtain a permit from the appropriate jurisdiction for the
construction of the access road.

B. Solar arrays and other solar related equipment shall be setback a minimum of
twenty (20) feet from the inside of the perimeter fencing to allow for maintenance
and emergency access.

C. Spacing between solar array rows shall allow access for maintenance and
emergency vehicles.

612.10 — Public Safety

A. The applicant shall provide a copy of the project summary and site plan to local
emergency services, including paid or volunteer fire department(s} and the Erie
County Department of Public Safety.

B. Upon request, the applicant shall cooperate with emergency services and
emergency management to develop and coordinate implementation of an
emergency response plan for the SEF.

C. Freestanding or ground mounted SEF shall be enclosed by a fence of a minimum 8
ft in height, to prevent or restrict unauthorized persons or vehicles from entering
the property.

D. A clearly visible warning sign, informing individuals of potential voltage hazards,
shall be placed at the base of all pad-mounted transformers and substations and
on the fence surrounding the SEF.

612.11 — Use of Public Roads
A. The facility owner shall provide a construction transportation plan that shows all
roadways that will be utilized to access the site. The plan shall address conditions
for repair or replacement if damage to municipal roads occurs during construction
activities. The plan shall be provided to the municipality for review and comment.

B. The local municipality may require that the facility owner bond the road in
compliance with state and local regulations. In the event that the municipality
declines to require bonding, the facility owner shall submit a copy of a letter from
the municipality indicating the municipality’s decision not to require said bonding.

C. In the event that the municipality declines to require that the facility owner bond
the road, the County may require that the facility owner bond the road.

D. Any road damage caused by the facility owner or its contractors shall be promptly
repaired at the facility owner’'s expense.

E. The facility owner shall demonstrate that it has appropriate financial assurance to
ensure the prompt repair of damaged roads.

Page 17 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

612.12 - Decommissioning

A. Prior to final approval of any plans for a SEF, the facility owner shall enter into a
legally binding decommissioning agreement with the local municipality outlining
the responsibility of parties under this agreement as to the decommissioning of the
SEF. The decommissioning agreement shall be in a form suitable for execution by
the municipality, and should include the following:

1. The facility owner is required to notify the local municipality immediately
upon cessation or abandonment of the operation. The SEF shall be
presumed to be discontinued or abandoned if no electricity is generated by
such system for a period of twelve (12) continuous months. The SEF is not
presumed to be discontinued or abandoned if the facility owner has
temporarily ceased its operation, but is in the process of transferring
ownership and management of the SEF.

2. Ifitis determined that the SEF has permanently ceased it operation, or has
been abandoned, the facility owner shall then have twelve (12) months in
which to dismantle and remove the SEF including all solar related
equipment or appurtenances related thereto, including but not limited to
buildings, cabling, electrical components, roads, foundations and other
associated facilities from the property.

3. To the exient possible, the materials shall be re-sold or salvaged. Materials
that cannot be re-sold or salvaged shall be disposed of at a facility
authorized to dispose of such materials by federal or state law.

4. Any soil exposed during the removal shall be stabilized in accordance with
applicable erosion and sediment control standards.

5. Any access drive paved aprons from public roads may remain for future use
unless directed otherwise by the landowner.

6. The SEF site area shall be restored to its pre-development condition,
suitable for its prior use Except in the case that the landowner authorizes,
in writing any buffer landscaping or access roads installed to remain.

7. Any necessary permits, such as Erosion and Sedimentation and NPDES
permits, shall be obtained prior to decommissioning activities.

8. At the time of issuance of approval for the construction of the SEF, the
facility owner shall provide financial security in the form and amount
acceptable to the municipality and in favor of the municipality, fo secure its
obligations under this Section.

9. The facility owner shall, at the time of the land development plan application,
provide the municipality with an estimate of the cost of performing the
decommissioning activities required herein. The facility owner shall provide
financial security of 110% of the estimated cost of decommissioning. The
estimate may include an estimated salvage and resale value, discounted by
a factor of 10%. The decommissioning cost estimate formula shall be; gross

Page 18 of 21



Ordinance No. 49, 2024

cost of decommissioning activities minus 90% credit of salvage and
resale value equals the decommissioning cost estimate.

10.0n every 5th anniversary of the date of providing the decommissioning
financial security, the facilty owner shall provide an updated
decommission cost estimate, utilizing the formula set forth above with
adjustments for inflation and cost and value changes. If the
decommissioning security amount increases, the facility owner shall
remit the increased financial security to the municipality within 30 days
of the approval of the updated decommissioning security estimate by
the municipality. If the decommissioning security amount decreases by
greater than 10%, the municipality shall release from security any
amount held in excess of 110% of the updated decommission cost
estimate.

11.Decommissioning security estimates shall be subject to review and
approval by the municipality, and the facility owner shall be responsible
for administrative, legal, and engineering costs incurred by the
municipality for such review.

12.The decommissioning security may be in the form of cash deposit, surety
bond, irrevocable letter of credit, cashier's check, or escrow amount from
a federal or Commonwealth chartered lending institution in the amount
of 110% of the total proposed decommission cost estimate and in a
form satisfactory to the municipality and its solicitor.

B. In the event that the municipality indicates its desire not to participate or enter
into a binding decommissioning agreement with the facility owner, then the
County may enter into a decommissioning agreement with the facility owner.
In such a case, the facility owner shall submit a copy of a letter from the
municipality indicating the municipality’s desire not to enter into said agreement.

The Erie County Department of Planning and Community Development is authorized
to prepare and disseminate updated copies of the Erie County Subdivision and
Land Development Ordinance reflecting the amendments enacted by this Ordinance.

Page 19 of 21



ORDINANCE NUMBER 49, 2024

This Ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

[, Karen Chillcott, hereby certify that on the motion of , seconded
by , this ordinance was ENACTED AND ORDAINED this day of
, 2024 by a vote of to .
COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE
COUNTY OF ERIE, PENNSYLVANIA
Attest:
Karen Chillcott Terry M. Scutella, Chair
County Clerk
Date:
Chris Drexel, Vice Chair
Charlie Bayle
Approved by: Rock Copeland
Brenton Davis, André Horton

County Executive

Date:

Ellen Schauerman

Jim Winarski

Page 20 of 21



ERIE COUNTY ORDINANCE RATIONALE REQUEST

1o. JO€ Sinnott, Ericka Knight
Jessica Horan

From:

July 11, 2024

Solar Energy amendment to Erie County's Subdivision & Land Development Ordinance

Date to be placed on Finance Agenda:

Subject:

**Rationale summary should include the reason for ordinance request and the dollar amount.

Rationale

This is an amendment to the Erie County Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO) which was adopted on August 17,
2010, and last amended on May 28, 2019. These amendments will add regulations for large scale solar energy facilities. The purpose is
to promote the use of solar energy and to provide for the land planning, installation, construction and decommissioning of solar energy
facilities, subject to reasonable conditions that will protect public health, safety and welfare. The proposed amendment has been
reviewed by Solicitor Speros and approved by the Erie County Planning Commission.

The Erie County SALDO applies only to Boroughs and Townships within the County that have no municipal subdivision and land
development regulations in effect.

This includes the following municipalities:

Amity Township

Concord Township

Conneaut Township

Cranesville Borough

Elgin Borough

Elk Creek Township

LeBoeuf Township

Mill Village Borough

Platea Borough

Union Township

Wattsburg Borough

Wayne Township

Erie County Council will hold a Public Hearing to review and receive comments on the amendment. The Public Hearing will be held July
16, 2024 at 4:00 pm.
The ordinance will be considered for by County Council on July 16 and August 20.

There are no financial implications to the general fund or planning fund of this amendment.

Department
Name

oate 6/24124

Planning and Community Development

Name(s) Attending Finance Meeting
Jessica Horan

Page 21 of 21



	1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. OPTIONAL PRAYER OR REFLECTION
	3. ROLL CALL
	4. HEARING OF THE PUBLIC
	A. John May
	B. Mary Rennie
	C. Mary Lee
	D. Krista Perry Lamb
	E. Anna McCartney
	F. Others

	5. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING
	A. July 16, 2024 - Regular Meeting
	07-16-2024_Meeting Minutes F


	6. REPORTS OF COUNTY OFFICIALS
	A. County Executive and/or his Designee
	B. Finance Committee - Mr. Copeland
	C. Personnel Committee - Mr. Winarski
	D. Other

	7. OLD BUSINESS
	A. Second Reading of Ordinance Number 48, 2024, "Fift
	B. Second Reading of Ordinance Number 49, 2024, "Amen
	Ord. 49 - SALDO Amendment
	Ordinance-Rationale Solar amendment

	C. Second Reading of Ordinance Number 50, 2024, "2024
	D. Tabled Item: Ordinance Number 13, 2024, "2024 Appo

	8. NEW BUSINESS
	A. First Reading of Ordinance Number 51, 2024, "Ninth
	B. First Reading of Ordinance Number 52, 2024, "2024 
	C. First Reading of Ordinance Number 53, 2024, "2024 
	D. First Reading of Ordinance Number 54, 2024, "Revis
	E. First Reading of Ordinance Number 55, 2024, "2024 
	F. Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 22, 2024, "
	G. Possible Adoption of Resolution Number 23, 2024, "
	H. Possible reappointment of T.J. Sandell to the NWPA

	9. ADJOURNMENT
	A. *The next Finance/Personnel Committee Meetings are


	To: Joe Sinnott, Ericka Knight
	From: Jessica Horan
	Date to be placed on Finance Agenda: July 11, 2024
	Subject: Solar Energy amendment to Erie County's Subdivision & Land Development Ordinance
	Date: 6/24/24
	Names Attending Finance Meeting 1: Jessica Horan
	Names Attending Finance Meeting 2: 
	rationale: This is an amendment to the Erie County Subdivision and Land Development Ordinance (SALDO) which was adopted on August 17, 2010, and last amended on May 28, 2019. These amendments will add regulations for large scale solar energy facilities. The purpose is to promote the use of solar energy and to provide for the land planning, installation, construction and decommissioning of solar energy facilities, subject to reasonable conditions that will protect public health, safety and welfare. The proposed amendment has been reviewed by Solicitor Speros and approved by the Erie County Planning Commission.
The Erie County SALDO applies only to Boroughs and Townships within the County that have no municipal subdivision and land development regulations in effect. 
This includes the following municipalities:
Amity Township
Concord Township
Conneaut Township
Cranesville Borough
Elgin Borough
Elk Creek Township
LeBoeuf Township
Mill Village Borough
Platea Borough
Union Township
Wattsburg Borough
Wayne Township

Erie County Council will hold a Public Hearing to review and receive comments on the amendment. The Public Hearing will be held July 16, 2024 at 4:00 pm.
The ordinance will be considered for by County Council on July 16 and August 20.

There are no financial implications to the general fund or planning fund of this amendment.
	dept name: Planning and Community Development


